
 

 Page 1  
  

 Rathdrum 
                                         City Council Agenda 

                                   June 10, 2020  
                                      6:00 p.m. 
   
 
 
Location:  City Council Chamber     - Zoom Conference information will be on the   
  8047 W. Main Street  City Website – www.rathdrum.org   
  Rathdrum, ID  83858 
  (208) 687-0261 
 
 
 

WELCOME-PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES- Thank You. 
 

 
1) CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER 
 
2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
3) ROLL CALL 

 
4) AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA AND DECLARATION OF CONFLICT, EX-PARTE CONTACTS 

AND SITE VISITS The declaration and justification of an amendment must be approved by 
motion of the Council.  

 
5) ACTION ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR APPROVAL  

A) Regular Council Minutes of May 27, 2020 
B) Special Council Minutes of June 4, 2020 
C) Regular and Special Bills as presented 
D) Consideration of Surplus 2012 Chevy Impala – Police Department 

 
6) CEREMONIES AND REPORTS 

 
7) VISITORS COMMENTS – An opportunity to address concerns not on the agenda  

(No formal action allowed – 3-minute time limit per issue) issues may be placed on 
subsequent agenda. Comments regarding performance by city employees are 
inappropriate at this time and should be directed to the Mayor, either by subsequent 
appointment or after tonight’s meeting, if time permitting. Repeated comments of the 
same or similar topic will be considered out of order and not allowed. 



 

 Page 2  
  

 
8) OLD BUSINESS 

A) ACTION ITEM: Consideration of the Mailbox Replacement Policy 
 

9) PUBLIC HEARING 
 

10) NEW BUSINESS 
A) ACTION ITEM: Consideration of the Timber Glade Preliminary Long Plat – Subdivision 

Application 
B) Discussion Item: Honu Ct. Annexation agreement/Zoning 

 
11) STAFF REPORTS 

A) Public Works Reporting  
B) Police Reporting 
C) Park and Recreation Reporting 
D) City Administrator  

 
12) MAYOR’S REPORT/APPOINTMENTS 

A) Proclamation for Graduating class of 2020 
      
13) COUNCIL REPORTS    

 
14) ADJOURN 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rathdrum City Hall is an ADA accessible building.  Assistance for persons with disabilities 
will be provided upon 24-hours’ notice prior to the meeting. 



Council 
Calendar 

June 10th, 2020 
June 10 
June 11 
June 13 
June 18 
June 17 
June 18 

6:00 pm Regular Council Meeting 
10:30 am Senior Center Meeting 
12:00 pm Litter Pick-up - Postponed
1:30 pm KMPO (3rd Thursday) 
6:00 pm Planning & Zoning Commission 

11:50 am Chamber Luncheon 
June 20 9:00 am Mayor’s Cup at Twin Lakes Golf Course 
June 23 8:00 am KCATT 
June 24 6:00 pm Regular Council Meeting 
June 27 9:00 am Storm King Trails Volunteer Day 



Rathdrum City Hall is an ADA accessible building.  Assistance for persons with disabilities 
will be provided upon 24‐hours’ notice prior to the meeting. 

 

	 Page	1  	
	 	

 
 Rathdrum 

                                         City Council Minutes 
                                          May 27, 2020  
                                              6:00 p.m. 
   
 

 

Location:   City Council Chamber     ‐ Zoom Conference information will be on the   
    8047 W. Main Street   City Website – www.rathdrum.org     
    Rathdrum, ID  83858 
    (208) 687‐0261 
 
 
 

WELCOME‐PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES‐ Thank You. 
 

 
1) CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER 
 
       Meeting called to order at 6:00 pm 
 
2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 
3) ROLL CALL 

 
PRESENT:                         Mayor Holmes.  Councilor Hill, Councilor Laws, Councilor Rickard, 

and Councilor Adams via Zoom video Conference 
      ABSENT:        

STAFF:                               City Administrator Duce. City Clerk Halligan, City Planner Siess, 
Finance Director Taylor and City Attorney Herrington via Zoom 
video Conference 

 
4) AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA AND DECLARATION OF CONFLICT, EX‐PARTE CONTACTS 

AND SITE VISITS The declaration and justification of an amendment must be approved by 
motion of the Council.  

 



Rathdrum City Hall is an ADA accessible building.  Assistance for persons with disabilities 
will be provided upon 24‐hours’ notice prior to the meeting. 

 

	 Page	2  	
	 	

Mayor Holmes stated that we will be removing 10a Mailbox Replacement Policy as an 
action item from the calendar tonight, we got some late information from our Attorney 
and our City Administrator would like a chance to review the information and bring it 
back in the proper format and a later date.  We still will be talking about it but not make a 
decision on it tonight. 

 
5) ACTION ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR APPROVAL  

A) Regular Council Minutes of May 13, 2020 
B) Special Council Minutes of May 19, 2020 
C) Regular and Special Bills as presented 

 
            City Administrator gave a brief presentation on the consent calendar 

 
Councilor Rickard made a MOTION that we approve the Consent Calendar as 
presented.  Motion seconded by Councilor Laws. 

      
AYES:  Councilor Rickard 

Councilor Laws 
  Councilor Hill 
  Councilor Adams 
NAYES:  None 
ABSENT:   

 
            Passed by all 
 
6) CEREMONIES AND REPORTS 

 
7) VISITORS COMMENTS – An opportunity to address concerns not on the agenda  

(No formal action allowed – 3‐minute time limit per issue) issues may be placed on 
subsequent agenda. Comments regarding performance by city employees are 
inappropriate at this time and should be directed to the Mayor, either by subsequent 
appointment or after tonight’s meeting, if time permitting. Repeated comments of the 
same or similar topic will be considered out of order and not allowed. 
 

8) OLD BUSINESS 
 

9) PUBLIC HEARING 
 

10) NEW BUSINESS 
A) ACTION ITEM: Consideration of the Mailbox replacement Policy 

 



Rathdrum City Hall is an ADA accessible building.  Assistance for persons with disabilities 
will be provided upon 24‐hours’ notice prior to the meeting. 

 

	 Page	3  	
	 	

    City Administrator gave a brief presentation on the Mailbox replacement Policy 
 

What I would like from the Council is when we should we replace a mailbox, and how 
much should we spend on a mail mailbox?  We would like to know how the Council 
would like to handle mailboxes in the winter month. 
 
Do you want the replacement policy be for only snowplow and/or snow contact and do 
you want to put a dollar value on the replacement? 
 
Council stated that we should replace it with a certain dollar amount and maybe 
require a permit. 
 
City Attorney stated that he was trying to write the policy that we would replace it 
with a standard mailbox. 
 

B) ACTION ITEM: Consideration of the Zahran Conditional Use Permit Request 
 
            City Planner gave a brief presentation on the Zahran Conditional Use Permit Request 

 
The property is within the Rockwood Business Park located generally west of Highway 
41 and south of Boekel Road at the southwest corner of Boekel Road and Rockwood 
Court.  
 
The Kootenai County Assessors Tax Parcel Numbers are R‐6770‐001‐001‐A (8470 W 
Boekel Rd) and R‐6770‐001‐002‐A (8188 W Boekel Rd).  
 
The legal description of the property is Lot 1 and Lot 2, Block 1, Rockwood Business 
Park.  
 
The subject site is located within the General Commercial (C‐1) zone district and is 
currently vacant. 

 
The request is an application for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for residential 
land use to occur on commercially zoned (C‐1) property. The Applicant seeks to allow 
duplex buildings to be built on the subject lots (one duplex per lot).  
 
Pursuant to Rathdrum City Code (RCC), 11‐4B‐2 (D), General Commercial District, 
Conditional Uses, all principal and conditional uses permitted in residential districts 
may be allowed in the C‐1 district by conditional use permit. A conditional use permit 
may be granted to an applicant if the proposed use is prohibited by the terms of RCC 
Title 11 but is allowed with conditions under specific provisions of RCC Title 11 and is 



Rathdrum City Hall is an ADA accessible building.  Assistance for persons with disabilities 
will be provided upon 24‐hours’ notice prior to the meeting. 

 

	 Page	4  	
	 	

not in conflict with the comprehensive plan. The minimum criteria and conditions of 
the RCC shall apply to the approval of any conditional use permit.  
 
Councilor Hill made a MOTION that we approve the Zahran Conditional Use Permit 
with the recommended conditions of approval listed on Exhibit B paragraph 4 
conditions of approval 1 thru 12.  (See attached) Motion seconded by Councilor 
Rickard. 

      
AYES:  Councilor Hill   

Councilor Rickard  
  Councilor Laws 
  Councilor Adams 
NAYES:  None 
ABSENT:   

 
             Passed by all 
 
11) STAFF REPORTS 

A) Finance Reporting 
B) City Administrator  

 
12) MAYOR’S REPORT/APPOINTMENTS 
      
13) COUNCIL REPORTS    

 
14) ADJOURN 

 
Meeting was adjourned at 7:16 pm 
 

  
 
 
_____________________________________ 

                                                                          Vic Holmes, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
________________________________________ 
Sherri L Halligan, City Clerk 
 



Zahran CUP 2020-02 Staff_CC.docCC   13 

 

 

CITY OF RATHDRUM 

Suggested Findings of Fact / Conclusions of Law and Conditions of 

Approval for Zahran CUP 

 

FINDINGS OF FACT / CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. The applicant / project proponent and property owner is Ash Zahran / Zahran Construction, PO Box 1533, 

Hayden, ID 83835. 

2. The Applicant seeks approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for residential use (duplexes) of 

commercially zoned property pursuant to Rathdrum City Code (RCC) 11-4B-2 (D) (General Commercial 

District, Conditional Uses), and 11-8 (Conditional Uses). A Conditional Use Permit subject to review and 

recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission, and approval of the City Council is necessary to 

allow for the proposed use.  

3. The subject site is located at 8470 and 8188 W. Boekel Road, Rathdrum Idaho, within the General 

Commercial (C-1) zone district.  The Kootenai County Assessors Tax Parcel Numbers are R-6770-001-001-A 

and R-6770-001-002-A respectively.   

4. In the General Commercial district all principal and conditional uses permitted in residential districts may be 

allowed by Conditional Use Permit. Conditions of approval may be attached to the permit to minimize 

impacts, control timing of the development, designate the nature of the development, provide for on and off-

site improvements, require studies and/or plans and other provisions as required by the Rathdrum 

Comprehensive Plan and Rathdrum City Code. 

5. Several Goals and Policies of the City’s Comprehensive Plan and standards within Rathdrum City Code 

pertain to the proposal. The Staff Report includes a comprehensive analysis of the proposal's consistency with 

the Plan and Code. With the provision of Conditions of Approval, the proposal can implement goals and 

policies of the City’s Comprehensive Plan and be consistent with City Code. 

6. The surrounding properties include commercial operations within the C-1 district, apartment homes within the 

R-3 district, and duplexes within the R-2 zone district.  The proposed use is consistent with surrounding land 

use activities and will not cause significant adverse impacts on the human, aesthetic, or natural environments 

that cannot be mitigated by Conditions of Approval. 

7. The entire file of record was reviewed by City staff in review of the proposal and development of the Staff 

Report dated May 14, 2020 and considered by the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

8. The application has been processed in compliance with the regulations of RCC 11-8-2 and Idaho Statute 67-

6512. 

IV.  CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

1. All conditions imposed herein shall be binding on the “Applicant,” which term shall include the owner or 

owners of the property, heirs, assigns, and successors. 

2. The granting of this Conditional Use Permit shall not be considered as establishing a binding precedent to 

grant other permits, including but not limited to building or site development permits associated with the 

property.  

3. Any change in use, expansion or contraction of the site area, or alteration of use classified as conditional 

involving the proposal shall be brought to the attention of the City, who can, if deemed necessary, require the 

changes to be brought before the City Planning and Zoning Commission at a public hearing and City Council 

for decision.  Any expense involved in holding a public hearing would be borne by the Applicant. 

Exhibit B 



Zahran CUP 2020-02 Staff_CC.docCC   14 

 

 

4. The proposed use shall be substantially initiated within one year of the date of Council approval. Failure to 

comply will result in the Conditional Use Permit becoming null and void. At the expiration of its year of 

approval, and after review by the City and assurance by the City that all Conditions of Approval have been or 

are being met, any such approved Conditional Use may be continued, shall run with the land, and is non-

transferable to other property. All conditions of the permit shall continue to apply throughout the life of the 

use. 

5. Residential development on the properties shall be subject to all provisions of RCC 11-4A-4, R-3 Residential 

District, including but not limited to lot area, density and setback provisions as follows: 

a. Minimum lot area: Six thousand (6,000) square feet plus one thousand five hundred (1,500) 

square feet per each additional dwelling unit over one. 

b. Maximum lot width to depth ratio: 1:2.5. 

c. Minimum front yard: Twenty feet (20') measured from the edge of the street right of way to the 

front of the building. 

d. Minimum side yard: Six feet (6') wide. 

e. Minimum side yard flanking street of corner lot: Twenty feet (20') from street right of way. 

f. Minimum rear yard: Ten feet (10') deep. 

g. Maximum building height: Not to exceed thirty-five feet (35'). 

h. Maximum lot coverage: Thirty five percent (35%). 

i. Minimum size for single-family dwelling unit: Six hundred (600) square feet. 

j. Minimum driveway requirements: Twenty-five feet (25') in length, excluding sidewalk; and 

k. Setback requirements must be measured from a legally established property line. 

6. Residential development on the properties shall be subject to provisions of RCC 11-5-1, General Provisions 

and Performance Standards, General Standards as follows: 

a. Right of way / frontage improvements, 1 through 4, including provision of an engineered 

stormwater management plan and installation of no-parking signs on Boekel Road per City 

standards. 

b. Point of access, 1 and 2. 

c. Visibility at intersections. 

d. General provision for fencing, 1 through 5 (e), excepting as further conditioned herein to provide 

screening between residential and commercial uses. 

e. Architectural projections. 

f. Stormwater management, 1 through 4; and  

g.  Hazards / Nuisances, 1 through 10. 

7. Residential development on the properties shall be subject to provisions of RCC 11-5-2, General Provisions 

and Performance Standards, Residential Standards as follows: 

a. Multi-family residential use standards. 

b. Residential landscaping, 1 through 3.  

c. Residential driveways and parking requirements, 1 through 3. 

d. Alternate approach standards for duplexes, 1 and 2, excepting that as requested driveway widths 

shall be no wider than nineteen feet with a four-foot wide planting strip separating adjoining 

driveways. 

e. Corner lot yard definition and setback interpretation. 



 

 
Page 1 

 
  

 
 Rathdrum 

                                  City Council Special Minutes 
                                   June 4, 2020  
                                      6:00 p.m. 
   
 

 

Location:  City Council Chamber         
  8047 W. Main Street    
  (208) 687-0261 
 
 
 

WELCOME-PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES- Thank You. 
 

      
1) CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER   

Meeting called to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
2) ROLL CALL 

 
PRESENT:                         Mayor Holmes.  Councilor Hill, Councilor Laws, Councilor Rickard, 

and Councilor Adams  
      ABSENT:      None       

STAFF:                               City Administrator Duce, Finance Director Taylor & Public Works 
Director Jump 

 
3) BUDGET WORKSHOP- Public Works Department 

 
Public Works Director/Engineer Jump gave an overview of the proposed FY20-21 budget 
for Public Works.  He described several of the proposed capital projects for water and 
sewer.  He continued to talk about the annual street rehabilitation, what it entails and 
how it is funded.  Council discussion ensued. 

 
4) ADJOURN 

Meeting adjourned at 8:05 p.m. 
 
 
 



 

 
Page 2 

 
  

 
 
 

 
 
  
 
_____________________________________ 

                                                                          Vic Holmes, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Sherri L Halligan, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rathdrum City Hall is an ADA accessible building.  Assistance for persons with disabilities 
will be provided upon 24-hours’ notice prior to the meeting. 























 
Page 1 

 

 

 

 

To:  Mayor and Council   

From: City Clerk Sherri L Halligan 

Date: June 10, 2020 

Re: City Property Surplus 

 

Mayor& Council: 

  The Police Department would like the following item listed to be declared as surplus 

so they could put it up for Auction.  

Police Department 

The Police Department would like to auction: 

 2012 Chevy Impala 
Identification Number: 2G1WD5E31C1268538 
Estimated Value: $2000.00 
Odometer Estimate: 86,287 

 

 

  Sincerely, 

                                                                                                           

 
 

City Clerk 
City of Rathdrum                                                                                         

 

CITY OF RATHDRUM   
CLERKS OFFICE 



May 12, 2020 ‐ https://www.usps.com/manage/mailboxes.htm 

City of Rathdrum Mailbox Policy: 
The City of Rathdrum has many operations that require the use of various types of vehicles and 
equipment to work along the street gutter and curb line. These operations include snow removal 
and plowing, mechanical sweeping, brush and leaf pickup. Performing these operations requires 
the City to plow or clean as close to the curb as possible. The City takes great care not to 
damage any property within the city right-of-way; however, The City recognizes that there are 
times that street maintenance may have unintentional consequences of occasionally causing 
damage to mailboxes within the community.  The purpose of this policy is to outline the 
circumstances under which the City will replace private mailboxes or reimburse owners who 
wish to purchase different replacements than the City will provide.  

City of Rathdrum Mailbox Replacement Policy: 
1. Eligibility for Reimbursement. In order to be eligible for replacement or 

reimbursement, the following conditions must be met: 
a. The damaged mailbox and/or post must meet, or have met, the requirements of 

the United States Postal Service in regard to construction and location. 
b. The damage must have been caused by City equipment engaged in street 

maintenance operations. 
c. The property owner must notify the city within fourteen (14) days of the date 

damage occurred. 
2. Policy. In the event that a mailbox and/or support post is damaged or destroyed by City 

Equipment engaged in street maintenance operations, the City will offer the owner of the 
property the choice of the following options: 

a. The City will furnish and install a standard replacement mailbox and/or post 
according to current USPS standards. 

i. The City intends to address these issues quickly and responsibly. Due to 
the timing of these incidents, it may be difficult to install the permanent 
replacement of individual mailboxes and/or post. If needed the City will 
locate a temporary mailbox to ensure the USPS can continue to deliver 
mail. Once the average daily temperature has exceeded 60° the City will 
install the replacement mailbox and/or post. 

b. The City will reimburse the owner in an amount equal to the cost of the standard 
post and/or mailbox offered by the City, so long as the replacement is complaint 
with the current USPS mailbox standards. 

i. The Director of Public Works shall annually establish the dollar amount of 
reimbursement to be provided above. The amount shall be based on the 
actual cost to the City to furnish and install a standard post and/or 
mailbox. 

Where to Place the Mailbox 

Here are some helpful guidelines to follow when placing your mailbox: 



May 12, 2020 ‐ https://www.usps.com/manage/mailboxes.htm 

 Position your mailbox 41″ to 45″ from the road surface to the bottom of the 
mailbox or point of mail entry. 

 Place your mailbox 6″ to 8″ back from the curb. (Measure from the front of the 
curb as shown in the graphic below.)  If you do not have a raised curb, contact 
your local postmaster for guidance. 

 Put your house or apartment number on the mailbox. 
 If your mailbox is on a different street from your house or apartment, put your full 

street address on the box. 

 

Installing the Mailbox Post 

The best mailbox supports are stable but bend or fall away if a car hits them. The 
Federal Highway Administration recommends: 

 A 4″ x 4″ wooden support or a 2″-diameter standard steel or aluminum pipe. 
 Avoid unyielding and potentially dangerous supports, like heavy metal pipes, 

concrete posts, and farm equipment (e.g., milk cans filled with concrete). 
 Bury your post no more than 24″ deep. 



Timber Glade Prelim Plat 2020-02 Staff_CC.doc 

 

 

 

City of Rathdrum 

City Council 
  

Staff Report –Preliminary Long Plat 
 

 

To: Rathdrum City Council 

From: City of Rathdrum Planning and Zoning Administrator 

Date of Report: June 4, 2020 

Subject: Timber Glade Preliminary Long Plat (Major Subdivision) LP 2020-02 

Property Address: NNA N Meyer Road 

Applicant / Owner: Wild Horse Investments, LLC     

14899 W Stub Avenue    

Rathdrum, ID 83858     

Representative:    Ray Kimball 

Whipple Consulting Engineers 

21 S. Pines Road 

Spokane Valley, WA 99206 

Date of Meeting: June 10, 2020 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

Request:  The applicant is requesting approval of a preliminary long plat (major subdivision) consisting of 

57 lots on approximately 19 acres of land.  

The purpose of the plat is to create a residential neighborhood consisting of 57 residential lots within the 

Residential R-2S and R-1 (low/medium and low density residential) zone districts, ranging in size from 

7,501 SF to 44,212 SF in area.  The minimum lot size within the northern portion of the site, which is within 

R-2S zoning is 7,501 SF which is compliant with the minimum 7,500 SF lot area required in this zone. The 

minimum lot size within the southern portion of the site, which was recently annexed with R-1 zoning, is 

10,000 SF which is compliant with the minimum 

10,000 SF lot area required in this zone. The project is 

to be developed in a single phase with public 

improvements anticipated to be started in spring of 

2020. 

This plat will include dedication of right-of-way and 

improvements for streets and sidewalks to serve the 

development in accordance with City standards, 

including extension of Sedona Street and Liane Lane. 

Water, sewer, and other utilities will be extended to 

serve the development and stormwater will be 

collected in street-side swales.  

Site Information / Location of Project:  The property 

 



Timber Glade Prelim Plat 2020-02 Staff_CC.doc   2 

 

 

is generally located west of N Meyer Road, south of W Christine Street and north of W Flagstaff Street.  

The Kootenai County Assessors Tax Parcel Numbers are R-J406-001-001-0 and 52N04W-31-2170. The 

legal description is by meets and bounds within the NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 31 AND THE 

NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 32, TOWNSHIP 52 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST, BOISE MERIDIAN, 

KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO, as found within the Title Report submitted with the application. 

Zoning:  A portion of the property was annexed into the City per Ordinance 463 on August 8, 2006 zoned R-

2S (residential, single family, low/medium-density), and is subject to the Annexation Agreement recorded 

with the Kootenai County Recorder on July 11, 2006 (attached hereto in Exhibit G). The remainder of the 

property was currently annexed with R-1 zoning pursuant to City Ordinance 590. 

Comprehensive Plan Designation:  The Future Land Use Map identifies the site as Residential. 

PROJECT REVIEW   

City planning and public works staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission have reviewed the proposed 

subdivision. This report reflects an overview of the proposed preliminary subdivision based on the submitted 

application materials, public hearing for the proposal, comments received, the Planning and Zoning 

Commission’s recommendation, and other information available at the time of this report. The project is 

subject to modification prior to final action of the Council. 

Comprehensive Plan Consistency Analysis:  The proposed development is generally consistent with and 

implements several goals and policies of the City’s Comprehensive Plan. The relevant goals and policies 

established within the Rathdrum Comprehensive Plan that pertain to the proposed development are listed in 

Exhibit D, attached hereto. Included for each Comprehensive Plan element is an analysis of the proposed 

project’s consistency. 

Rathdrum City Code: Several titles of the Rathdrum City Code (RCC) provide regulations for the 

development and operation of the proposed project. Those portions of the RCC that pertain to the proposed 

project are described in Exhibit C, attached hereto. Included for each requirement is an analysis of the 

proposed project’s conformance with that requirement.  

Public Hearing / Public Comments:  The Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing for this 

proposal on April 15, 2020. The Commission returned the application to the Applicant to make modifications 

to the proposal in-line with the City Council’s decision of the proposed annexation zoning (see process 

information within Exhibit C, §12-3-1-6 attached hereto). A summary of public comments received prior to 

and during the hearing are attached within Exhibit G. 

RECOMMENDATION 

In its review, the Planning and Zoning Commission determined the proposed subdivision conforms to the general 

purpose of the Comprehensive Plan and will include appropriate provisions for streets, drainage and other public 

ways, open space, water supplies, sewage disposal, fire protection and other appropriate public and private 

improvements upon infrastructure build-out. The City of Rathdrum Planning and Zoning Commission 

recommends APPROVAL of the Timber Glade Preliminary Long Plat subject to the following conditions: 

Staff recommends the following findings of fact and conclusions of law for any approval of the proposed 

subdivision: 

Conditions of Approval: 

1. The existing residence shall discontinue use of the existing private water and sewer utilities (well and 

septic system), shall abandon and/or remove such services as required by Panhandle Health District 

and/or other agency with jurisdiction and shall connect to City utilities prior to final subdivision 

approval. Such requirement supersedes citations 2.2 and 2.3 of the existing Annexation Agreement 



Timber Glade Prelim Plat 2020-02 Staff_CC.doc   3 

 

 

recorded under instrument number 2048749000 on August 10, 2006. All other requirements of said 

Annexation Agreement remain.  

2. The developer shall enter into a Development Agreement with the City which specifies property and 

term, project regulation and policies, conditions of approval (including improvements to be 

constructed, roadway drainage swales, landscaping / street trees, irrigation water service lines to 

roadway drainage swales and landscaped areas, maintenance of common area landscaping, fencing 

and roadway drainage swales, irrigation system casings, walkways and stormwater, street lights, 

streets, construction access, street closure, phasing, erosion sediment control plan, dedication of right 

of way, dedication of easements and sewer), improvement construction standards and procedures, 

performance guarantee, owner’s warranty, and other City requirements as approved by the City 

Council. 

3. The developer shall comply with the rules and requirements of any agency with jurisdiction over the 

project, including those agencies which provided comment for this proposal, and all applicable laws, 

rules and regulations governing the project, whether specified herein or not. 

4. The Planning and Zoning Administrator may approve reconfiguration of the location of Gifford 

Avenue southerly without returning to the Commission and Council for approval pursuant to the 

Administrator’s determination that such reconfiguration does not constitute a substantial change to 

the project. The Administrator may require changes to be brought back to the Commission and 

Council at their discretion. 

Findings of Fact: 

1. The applicant seeks approval of a preliminary long plat for development of a 57-lot subdivision, 

including 28 residential R-2S lots and 29 multifamily R-1 lot. 

2. The applicant is the property owner, Wild Horse Investments, LLC, represented by Ray Kimball of 

Whipple Consultant Engineers. 

3. The project is located west of N Meyer Road, south of W Christine Street and north of W Flagstaff 

Street. 

4. The site is currently partially developed with one single family home with outbuildings. 

5. The property was annexed into the Rathdrum city limits in 2006 provided with R-2S zoning and 

2020 with R-1 zoning as found on the City’s current zoning map and in compliance with the City’s 

Future Land Use Map. 

6. According to the Rathdrum City Code Section 12-3-1-1 every division of land for the purpose of 

sale, lease, or transfer or building development into five (5) or more lots, tracts or parcels within the 

incorporated limits of the City shall proceed in compliance with RCC Title 12. 

7. The proposed lot sizes are: 

a. In the Residential R-2S (low/medium density residential) zone district lots will range in size 

from 7,501 SF to 44,212 SF in area. 

b. In the Residential R-1 (low density residential) zone district lot will range in size from 10,000 

SF to 18,563 SF in area.  

8. The minimum lot size required in the R-2S zone district is 7,500 square feet. The minimum lot size 

in the R-1 zone district is 10,000 square feet. 

9. The application is subject to processing pursuant to RCC 12-3-1-5 and 12-3-1-6. 

10. An open record public hearing after due legal notice was held on April 15, 2020 before the Rathdrum 

Planning and Zoning Commission. 



Timber Glade Prelim Plat 2020-02 Staff_CC.doc   4 

 

 

11. Appearing and providing a summary of the staff report on behalf of the City of Rathdrum was City 

Planner, Cary Siess. 

12. Appearing and testifying on behalf of the applicant was Ray Kimball of Whipple Consulting 

Engineers. 

13. Public testimony was received prior to and during the hearing and admitted into the record. 

14. Admitted into the record were comments from agencies as follows: 

a. Northern Lakes Fire Protection District 

b. Bonneville Power Administration 

c. Lakeland Joint School District #272 

d. Lakeland Joint School District #272 Email 

e. City of Rathdrum Public Works Director / City Engineer Memo 

15. The Planning and Zoning Commission made their recommendation following review of the 

testimony and comments received and the facts of the proposal in compliance with RCC 12-3-1-7. 

16. Any conclusion of law which is more appropriately a finding of fact is incorporated herein by this 

reference. 

Conclusions of Law: 

1. The property / project site is appropriately zoned for the proposal. 

2. The application has been processed in compliance with RCC 12-3-1-1, 12-3-1-5 and 12-3-1-6. 

3. The proposed lot sizes are in conformance with the zone district standards. 

4. Transportation and utility related impacts have been appropriately addressed in the opinion of the 

City Engineer / PW Director. 

5. The proposal conforms, or can conform, with the application of conditions of approval, to the zone 

district regulations, the requirements of RCC Title 12 and is consistent with the Rathdrum 

Comprehensive Plan. 

6. Any finding of fact which is more appropriately a conclusion of law is incorporated herein by this 

reference. 

Potential Motions:  The language set forth below is provided for guidance with no intent to suggest any 

specific action. 

APPROVAL WITH RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL (Optional): I move to approve 

the Timber Glade Preliminary Long Plat with the recommended Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law 

and Conditions of Approval as found within the Planning Commission’s recommendation and staff 

report dated June 4, 2020, finding that it is in accord with the City of Rathdrum Comprehensive Plan and 

Rathdrum City Code as conditioned.  

ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL (Optional): I further move that the following additional 

conditions be met in accordance with Rathdrum City Code:        

APPROVAL WITH NO CONDITIONS:  I move to approve the Timber Glade Preliminary Long Plat 

finding that it is in accord with the City of Rathdrum Comprehensive Plan and Rathdrum City Code  

DENIAL:  I move to deny the Timber Glade Preliminary Lon Plat, finding that it is not in accord with 

Rathdrum City Code as follows: (cite code section and provide conclusion of non-compliance)  

The preliminary plat may also be returned to the Commission for modification pursuant to RCC 12-3-1-8. 



Timber Glade Prelim Plat 2020-02 Staff_CC.doc   5 

 

 

Staff Contact: 

For more information regarding this application, the complete project file, including application materials 

and project history, is available for review at Rathdrum City Hall at 8047 W. Main Street, Rathdrum, Idaho, 

or by contacting Planning staff: 

Cary Siess, City Planner / Planning and Zoning Administrator 

City of Rathdrum Public Works Department, Planning Division  

8047 W. Main Street, Rathdrum, Idaho 83858 

Phone: 208-687-2700 x 117  

Email: cary@rathdrum.org 

  

Attached Exhibits: 

Exhibit A - Project Narrative  

Exhibit B - Preliminary Subdivision, Revised  

Exhibit C - Rathdrum City Code Compliance Analysis Matrix 

Exhibit D - Rathdrum Comprehensive Plan Analysis Matrix 

Exhibit E – Agency Comments 

1. Northern Lakes Fire Protection District 

2. Bonneville Power Administration 

3. Lakeland Joint School District #272 

4. Lakeland Joint School District #272 Email 

5. City of Rathdrum Public Works Director / City Engineer Memo 

Exhibit F – Annexation Agreement 2006 

Exhibit G – Public Comments 

 

















3
18563 sf

15
14658 sf

21
13731 sf

22
9517 sf

34
14166 sf

35
16425 sf

32
22634 sf

33
24155 sf

46
10000 sf

45
10000 sf

44
10000 sf

43
10412 sf

42
10000 sf

10
10200 sf

11
10200 sf

12
10200 sf

13
10200 sf 14

11476 sf

9
10200 sf

4
11561 sf

5
10037 sf

6
20082 sf

8
10518 sf

1
10077 sf

2
10080 sf

47
16264 sf

41
10407 sf

48
10114 sf

50
7512 sf

49
10026 sf

55
7512 sf

56
10020 sf

57
10115 sf

18
10628 sf

17
10540 sf

16
11387 sf

19
8828 sf

20
7608 sf

31
44212 sf

40
10338 sf

39
7966 sf

38
7904 sf

37
8955 sf36

11489 sf

51
7512 sf

54
7512 sf

52
9523 sf

30
12096 sf

24
7591 sf

25
7646 sf

26
7870 sf

27
7560 sf

28
7560 sf

29
7560 sf

53
9536 sf

23
7501 sf

DRAWN:

PROJ #:

REVIEWED:

DATE:NAVD-88

RDK

19-2494

05/11/20

VERTICAL:

HORIZONTAL:

SCALE:

REVISIONSNO.   DATE      BY        
04/15/20JMH ORIGINAL PREPARATION

WCE
WHIPPLE  CONSULTING ENGINEERS

21 SOUTH PINES ROAD
SPOKANE VALLEY, WA  99206

PH: 509-893-2617  FAX: 509-926-0227

CIVIL
STRUCTURAL

SURVEYING

TRAFFIC

PLANNING

LANDSCAPE

OTHER

GIFFORD AVE & MEYER RD
RATHDRUM, ID

TIMBER GLADE

19-2494
JOB NUMBER

SHEET

SUBDIVISION PLAN - PRELIMINARY PLAT OF1      3
1'=60' X

W E
S

N

C

TIMBER GLADE
PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION PLAN

LOCATED IN A PORTION OF
SEC 31, TWN 52N, RNG 04W, B.M.

CITY OF RATHDRUM, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO

ENGINEERING (CONTACT) OWNER

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

PROJECT
LOCATION

VICINITY MAP

LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND MONUMENT AS NOTED SECTION CORNER SECTION QUARTER CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEYER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
XXXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALL TWO BUSINESS DAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEFORE YOU DIG

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONE-CALL NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
811

AutoCAD SHX Text
P:\WCE_WORK\2019 WCE PROJECTS\2019-2494 WILDHORSE-TIMBER GLADE\DWG\2494-PRELIM PLAT-REV.DWG PLOT DATE:05/14/20 PLOT DATE:05/14/2005/14/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANS  NOT APPROVED  BY AGENCY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLAGSTAFF STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEDONA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIANE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHRISTINE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALDO STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE DATA TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERAL DESIGN DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL NUMBERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
52N04W-31-2170

AutoCAD SHX Text
R-J406-001-001-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text
R-2S/R-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT AREA (ac)

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.944

AutoCAD SHX Text
R-2S AREA (ac)

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
NUMBER OF LOTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
57

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAXIMUM LOT AREA (SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
44,212

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINIMUM LOT AREA (SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
7,501

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY DENSITY (lots/ac)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVERAGE LOT AREA (SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
13,258

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOMESTIC WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF RATHDRUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER DISPOSAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF RATHDRUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE DEPARTMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERN LAKES FIRE DIST

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAVD-88

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC PROVIDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVISTA

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS PROVIDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVISTA

AutoCAD SHX Text
OTHER PURVEYORS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO BE DETERMINED

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS PRELIMINARY PLAT WAS PREPARED BY: WHIPPLE CONSULTING ENGINEERS 21 S. PINES ROAD SPOKANE VALLEY, WA 99216 PHONE: 509-893-2617   CONTACT: RAY KIMBALL, P.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE INVESTMENTS, LLC 14899 W. STUB AVE RATHDRUM, ID 83858 MIKE STEGMANN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEOPOLD CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GIFFORD AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PINCHOT STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEOPOLD AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RISS AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
THAT PORTION OF LAND LOCATED IN THE NORTHEAST   OF 14 OF SECTION 31, TOWNSHIP 52 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST, BOISE MERIDIAN, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: LOT 1, BLOCK 1, PARK ROSE RANCH, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN BOOK J AT PAGE 406, RECORDS OF KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO. TOGETHER WITH: THE NORTH HALF OF THE SOUTH HALF OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 31, TOWNSHIP 52 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST, BOISE MERIDIAN, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO. EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PORTION CONVEYED TO THE CITY OF  RATHDRUM OF WARRANTY DEED RECORDED AUGUST 28, 2018 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 2658868000, RECORDS OF KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK ROSE ESTATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIMBER LANDING ESTATES FIRST ADDITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
COPPER VALLEY ESTATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIMBER LANDING ESTATES THIRD ADDITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
COPPER VALLEY ESTATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMERCIAL PARK AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGHWAY 53

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHRISINE ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIANE LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLAGSTAFF ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOMBSTONE ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEDONA ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MERYER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING UTILITY EASEMENT TO BE VACATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  PIPELINE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  TELEPHONE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASIS OF BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY WHIPPLE CONSULTING ENGINEERS 1/20/20 RAY KIMBALL, P.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' UTILITY EASEMENT (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' UTILITY EASEMENT (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' UTILITY EASEMENT (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' UTILITY EASEMENT (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' UTILITY EASEMENT (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' UTILITY EASEMENT (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' UTILITY EASEMENT (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' UTILITY AND SIDEWALK EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' UTILITY AND SIDEWALK EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' UTILITY AND SIDEWALK EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' UTILITY AND SIDEWALK EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' UTILITY AND SIDEWALK EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' UTILITY AND SIDEWALK EASEMENT



Ex.C&D for Council.docx 

 

 

Rathdrum City Code Analysis Matrix 

Code Consistent Discussion 

Rathdrum City Code (RCC) Title 12, Subdivision 

RCC 12 Chapter 1, Definitions 

contains definitions to be used in 

review of the application.  

Yes Such definitions were utilized in review of the proposal. 

RCC 12 Chapter 2, Short Plats 

contains requirements and 

standards for short plats. The 

Chapter is generally not applicable 

to this application with the 

exception of 12-2-2, Exemptions. 

NA The proposal is not exempt. 

RCC 12 Chapter 3, Long Plats 

contains requirements and 

standards for long plats. 

Yes and NA This chapter is provided by section below. 

12-3-1, Preliminary Plat “  

• §12-3-1-1, Applicability Yes The division is for the purpose of building development for more 

than five (5) lots. 

• §12-3-1-2, Exemptions NA The proposal is not exempt as found in RCC 12-2-2. 

• §12-3-1-3, Preapplication 

Procedure 

Yes After submission of the application on January 29, 2020 a 

preapplication meeting was held with the applicant and City staff 

on February 6, 2020. 

• §12-3-1-4, Application Fees Yes The applicant submitted the required application, checklist, title 

report and fees. 

• §12-3-1-5, Plats and Plans 

A. Requirements 

B. Adequacy of Plats and 

Plans 

C. Distribution of Plats and 

Plans 

Yes A. The Applicant submitted an application on January 29, 2020 

showing the general layout of roads, lots, blocks and other 

elements of the subdivision. A hearing before the Planning 

and Zoning Commission was scheduled not less than 20 days 

after determining the application was complete and 

consistent with RCC 12-3-2, Preliminary Plat Standards, in 

compliance with this section. The public hearing was 

delayed due to the shut down of public meetings directed by 

the Governor of the State of Idaho due to the Covid-19 crisis. 

A public hearing was held before Planning and Zoning on 

April 15, 2020. A pre-construction meeting will be required 

with the public works department prior to construction of any 

infrastructure necessary for this plat. 

B. Staff reviewed the application materials and provided 

comments and/or red lined plans to the applicant on February 

6, 2020 during the preapplication meeting. The applicant 

resubmitted plans on February 11, 2020. Staff determined 

that plans were complete and substantially met the standards 

set forth in this title. 

Staff provided a Notice of Public Hearing including a 

description of the proposal and invitation to provide 

Exhibit C 



Ex.C&D for Council.docx   2 

 

 

Code Consistent Discussion 

comment to the following agencies on March 2, 2020: Idaho 

Department of Water Resources, US Postal Service, 

Bonneville Power Administration, Charter, Centurytel, 

Kootenai County Community Development Department, 

BNSF, Kootenai Electric Cooperative, Frontier, 

Transcanada, Kootenai County EMS, Idaho Department of 

Environmental Quality, Panhandle Health District, Kootenai 

Metropolitan Planning Organization, Idaho Transportation 

Department, Lakes Highway District, Post Falls Highway 

District, Lakeland School District, North Idaho STEM 

Academy, Northern Lakes Fire Department, City of 

Rathdrum Police Department, City of Rathdrum Parks and 

Recreation Department, City of Rathdrum Public Works 

Department and Avista. The Applicant also provided notice 

to agencies prior to application submittal. 

Comments Received: Comments received are attached in 

Exhibits E. 

• §12-3-1-6, Public Hearing 

A. Notice of Hearing 

B. Continuance of Hearing 

Yes and NA A. Notice of the hearing, including time, place and summary of 

the proposal was posted in the Coeur d’Alene Press on 

February 29, 2020 for the Public Hearing scheduled for 

March 18, 2020 in compliance with this section. 

Notice by regular mail to all property owners of land situated 

within three hundred feet of the external boundaries of the 

proposal was provided on March 4, 2020 in compliance with 

this section. 

A Public Notice was posted on the property on March 2, 

2020 in compliance with this section. Notice was also posted 

on the City’s web site and notice board outside of City Hall 

on March 2, 2020. All notices included the date, time and 

place of the hearing as well as a summary of the proposal, 

and the description and location of the subject property. 

Furthermore, prior to the date of the public hearing, the City 

issued a written staff report dated March 11, 2020, 

integrating any public comments received regarding the 

application, and made available to the public a copy of the 

Staff Report for review and inspection. A copy of the staff 

report was provided to the Applicant or the Applicant’s 

designated representative and the Planning Commission 

prior to the hearing.  

Following scheduling of the public hearing and providing 

notice, the Governor of the State of Idaho ordered a statewide 

stay at home order requirements for social distancing due to 

the Covid-19 crisis. Due to this, the hearing was rescheduled 

to April 15, 2020. All notices were re-issued to ensure 

compliance with this section, including re-posting legal 

notice in the Coeur d’Alene Record on March 31, 2020 and 



Ex.C&D for Council.docx   3 

 

 

Code Consistent Discussion 

re-mailing all property owners within 350 feet of the project 

and re-posting the property and City hall on April 3, 2020., 

In addition, the City posted notice of the hearing, application 

materials and the staff report and exhibits for this application 

on the City’s web site on April 7, 2020.  

B. A public hearing was held before the Rathdrum Planning and 

Zoning Commission on April 15, 2020. The Commission 

took public testimony as found herein. During deliberations 

the Commission requested more information from the 

applicant in relation to platting in consideration of the 

adopted zoning (R-2S or R-1 as decided by the Council) and 

continued deliberations to the next regular meeting  held on 

May 20, 2020. 

• §12-3-1-7, Commission 

Action 

Yes Following the public hearing, at the next regular meeting on May 

20, 2020 the Commission considered all relevant evidence and 

comments and determined to recommend that the Council 

approve the preliminary plat. In its review, the Commission 

determined that the proposed subdivision conforms to the general 

purpose of the Comprehensive Land Use Plan and includes 

appropriate provisions for streets, drainage, alleys and other 

public ways, open space, water supplies, sewage disposal, fire 

protection and other appropriate public and private 

improvements. 

• §12-3-1-8, Council Action To Be 

Determined 

The Council shall review the application following receiving the 

Commission’s report and other relevant evidence and take action 

to approve, reject, or return the plat to the commission for 

modification. 

• §12-3-1-9, Expiration of 

Approval 

NA This section is not applicable until approval of the application. 

12-3-2, Preliminary Plat 

Standards 

Yes The application contains the standards as numbered A through S 

of this section. 

12-3-3, Final Plat NA Not applicable at this time. 

12-3-4, Final Plat Standards NA Not applicable at this time. 

RCC 12, Chapter 4, Design and 

Improvement Standards 

contains street, block and lot 

standards for subdivisions, and 

construction plan specifications 

and standards.  

Yes Streets, blocks and lots have been determined to be compliant or 

in keeping with existing approved subdivisions and 

development. 

Construction plans and specifications will be reviewed for 

compliance at the time of submittal of such in the future 

(following preliminary plat approval). 

RCC 12, Chapter 5, Municipal 

Land Donation involves 

municipal land donation. 

NA The City has adopted impact fees which are applicable to the 

project and preempt this chapter. 

RCC 12, Chapter 6, Variances 

deals with Variances for this Title. 

NA No request for variance has been requested. 



Ex.C&D for Council.docx   4 

 

 

Code Consistent Discussion 

RCC 12, Chapter 7, Violations 

and Enforcement deals with 

Violations of this Title. 

NA No violations have been found. 

RCC 12, Chapter 8, 

Amendments deals with 

Amendments to this Title 

NA Not applicable to the application. 

RCC Title 7, Public Ways and Property 

RCC 7, Chapter 1, Public Works 

Projects, Performance Bonds 

deals with requirements for 

anyone engaging in municipal 

construction projects such as water 

and sewer main extension 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

Construction of infrastructure to be dedicated to the public will 

be required to conform with the requirements of this chapter, 

including licensing and bonding. The City Council shall approve 

any infrastructure prior to acceptance. 

RCC 7, Chapter 7, Right of Way 

Encroachment deals with 

requirements for working in City 

right of way 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

The developer will be required to obtain permitting from the City 

and provide any required sureties prior to work within right-of-

way for this development. 

RCC Title 8, Water and Sewer 

RCC 8, Chapter 1, Water 

System deals with metering and 

fees for users of the municipal 

water system 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

The development of lots within the subdivision will be subject to 

the requirements of this chapter. 

RCC 8, Chapter 2, Cross-

Connection Control deals with 

protecting public health by 

controlling actual or potential 

cross-connections and 

contamination of the public water 

system. 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

The development of lots within the subdivision will be subject to 

the requirements of this chapter. 

RCC 8, Chapter 3, Wastewater 

Collection and Disposal deals 

with the regulation of wastewater 

disposal, construction, ownership, 

connections, line extension 

policies, permitting, user charges, 

fees, easements, etc. 

Yes, As 

Conditioned 

Connection to the City’s municipal sewer system is required. The 

developer is responsible to provide services necessary to serve 

the subdivision and dedicate infrastructure to the public upon 

acceptance by the City Council. Construction of infrastructure to 

be dedicated will be required to conform with the requirements 

of this chapter and shall be reviewed at the time of construction 

plan submittal. 

RCC 8, Chapter 4, Wastewater 

Discharge Restrictions defines 

prohibited wastes to the municipal 

sewer system, including but not 

limited to RV waste. 

NA Typical domestic waste is not generally applicable to this 

chapter. 

RCC Title 9, Building Regulations 

RCC 9, Chapter 1, Building Yes As Building on individual lots will be subject to review under the 



Ex.C&D for Council.docx   5 

 

 

Code Consistent Discussion 

Codes defines adopted 

international codes, and contains 

requirements for building 

permitting and fees 

Conditioned applicable international codes and permitting by the City at the 

time of development (following final plat approval). 

RCC 9, Chapter 2, Mechanical 

Code and Fuel Gas Installers 

defines adopted international 

codes, and contains requirements 

for permitting and fees 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

Building on individual lots will be subject to review under the 

applicable international codes and permitting by the City at the 

time of development (following final plat approval). 

RCC 9, Chapter 4, Development 

Impact Fee the purpose of this 

chapter is to prescribe the 

procedure whereby developers of 

land shall pay an impact fee for 

the purpose of providing the 

public facilities and system 

improvements needed to serve 

future residents and users of such 

development, ensure adequate 

facilities are provided to serve 

new growth, ensure those who 

benefit from the growth and 

development pay their 

proportionate share of new 

public facilities needed to serve 

the growth and development, 

collect and expend development 

impact fees and ensure capital 

improvements (which are 

approved and listed in the City’s 

Capital Improvement Plan) are 

fully funded by the fees. The 

chapter deals with calculating 

fees, collection, etc. 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

Development impact fees are paid and collected at the time of 

building permitting and calculated based on the use. The capital 

improvements to be financed by the impact fee are those listed in 

the City’s adopted Capital Improvement Plan 

This chapter shall not affect, in any manner, the permissible 

use of property, density of development, design and 

improvement standards and requirements, or any other aspect 

of the development of land or provision of capital 

improvements subject to the zoning and subdivision 

regulations or other regulations of the city, which shall be 

operative and remain in full force and effect without limitation 

with respect to all such development. 

RCC Title 11, Zoning 

RCC 11, Chapter 4, Zoning 

Districts defines zoning districts 

and boundaries as found within the 

adopted City Zoning Map and 

Future Land Use Map 

Yes The zoning districts within the subdivision were established by 

amendment of the City Zoning Map by the City Council at the 

time of annexation of the property. The proposed development 

follows the adopted boundaries within the approved R-2S 

district. 

RCC 11, Chapter 4, Zoning, 

Article A-2-1, R-2S Residential 

District provides for 

establishment of single-family 

neighborhood development 

Yes The proposed lot configuration within the R-2S zone district 

provides for establishment of a single-family neighborhood with 

sufficient area to provide for minimum lot sizes, setbacks and 

appropriately sized building envelopes when such standards are 

applied at the time of building development. 



Ex.C&D for Council.docx   6 

 

 

Code Consistent Discussion 

subject to the established lot area, 

density, setback and other 

provisions of the chapter. 

RCC 11, Chapter 5, General 

Provisions and Performance 

Standards, Section 1, General 

Standards provides for required 

right-of-way / frontage 

improvements required at the time 

of land development, including 

driveway approaches, sidewalks, 

fencing, stormwater management, 

and other provisions. 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

The proposal has been reviewed and determined to provide 

adequate lot frontages to accommodate driveways, including 

separation between approaches, areas for stormwater retention, 

sidewalks and other frontage improvements. As conditioned, the 

developer will be required to enter into a Development 

Agreement, as approved by the City Council, which will specify 

project regulation and policies, conditions of approval 

(including improvements to be constructed, roadway drainage 

swales, landscaping / street trees, irrigation water service lines 

to roadway drainage swales and landscaped areas, 

maintenance of common area landscaping, fencing and 

roadway drainage swales, irrigation system casings, walkways 

and stormwater, street lights, streets, construction access, 

street closure, phasing, erosion sediment control plan, 

dedication of right of way, dedication of easements and 

sewer), improvement construction standards and procedures, 

performance guarantee, owner’s warranty, and other City 

requirements in conformance with this chapter. Construction 

plans and specifications will be reviewed for compliance at the 

time of submittal of such in the future. 

RCC 11. Chapter 5, General 

Provisions and Performance 

Standards, Section 2, 

Residential Standards provides 

standards for landscaping, 

driveways and parking, garages, 

accessory buildings and other 

provisions for residential 

development. 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

Plans and specifications will be reviewed for compliance at the 

time of submittal of individual lot development in the future. 

RCC 11. Chapter 5, General 

Provisions and Performance 

Standards, Section 3, 

Commercial, Industrial, Multi-

Family and Institutional 

Standards provides standards for 

landscaping, parking, loading, 

lighting, trash areas, material 

storage and other provisions for 

development. 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

Plans and specifications will be reviewed for compliance at the 

time of submittal of individual lot development in the future. 

RCC 11, Chapter 5, General 

Provisions and Performance 

Standards, Section 4, Site Plan 

Review provides standards to 

ensure commercial, industrial, 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

Plans and specifications will be reviewed for compliance at the 

time of submittal of individual lot development in the future. 



Ex.C&D for Council.docx   7 

 

 

Code Consistent Discussion 

multi-family and institutional 

development are in compliance 

with zoning and other City Code 

requirements and/or policy as well 

as other regulations. 

RCC 11, Chapter 12, 

Development / Annexation 

Agreements provides for the 

opportunity for the City to require 

an agreement, the form of which is 

required by the Zoning 

Administrator. 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

Staff has reviewed the Annexation Agreement for the property 

and determined that the proposal is in keeping with the terms and 

conditions therein. As conditioned, the developer shall enter into 

a Development Agreement with the City, as approved by the City 

Council to address specific project regulation and policies, 

conditions of approval (including improvements to be 

constructed, roadway drainage swales, landscaping / street 

trees, irrigation water service lines to roadway drainage swales 

and landscaped areas, maintenance of common area 

landscaping, fencing and roadway drainage swales, irrigation 

system casings, walkways and stormwater, street lights, 

streets, construction access, street closure, phasing, erosion 

sediment control plan, dedication of right of way, dedication 

of easements and sewer), improvement construction standards 

and procedures, performance guarantee, owner’s warranty, 

and other City requirements in conformance with City Code 

and policy.  

RCC 11, Chapter 16, Signs 

provides for sign standards and 

requirements. 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

Plans and specifications will be reviewed for compliance at the 

time of submittal of individual lot development in the future. 

 



Ex.C&D for Council.docx   8 

 

 

Comprehensive Plan Analysis Matrix 

Goal/Policy Consistent Discussion 

II A. Population 

II A. Population, Goal 1:  Address changing 

growth trends and capacities to work toward a 

moderate and stable rate of long-range 

population growth with orderly development. 

Yes The proposal addresses long-range population 

growth within a subdivision development 

which is consistent with other approved 

development in Rathdrum. 

II B. Land Use 

II B. Land Use, Goal 1:  A balance of land use 

guidelines will be applied to preserve and 

enhance the following values:  

• Rural character and small-town feel  

• Access to open space  

• Provision of day-to-day commercial needs  

• Well maintained and inter-connected local 

circulation systems  

• Economically rational development of 

desirable land uses  

• Historic sites  

• Capacity for citizens to live, work and play 

inside the community  

• Public safety  

• Quality of the local natural environment  

• Preservation of a clean and abundant aquifer  

• Efficient use of valuable infrastructure. 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

The proposal is consistent with other 

development within Rathdrum. The proposed 

subdivision will provide inter-connectivity with 

existing streets and provide capacity for 

citizens to live in the community. 

II B. Land Use, Goal 1, Policy A:  Actively engage 

citizens in planning and zoning activities to ensure 

desirable land use practices are applied and 

sustained. 

Yes As 

Conditioned 

The City provided public notice of the proposal 

as required by law and encouraged citizens to 

engage in the subdivision process.  

II B. Land Use, Goal 1, Policy C: Maintain 

regulatory standards that encourage private 

property land uses and infill development consistent 

with expressed local values.    

Yes The proposed subdivision will complete infill 

within an area already surrounded on three sides 

by similar development. 

II E. Public Services 

II E. Public Services, Goal 1, Policy A:  Coordinate 

with service providers and public safety entities to 

assure necessary and appropriate urban services 

are provided to accommodate projected types and 

densities of growth and development.  

Yes Service providers and public safety entities 

were provided an opportunity to comment on 

the proposal as required. 

II E.-1 Public Safety, Goal 1, Policy E: Continue to 

coordinate with fire protection officials to ensure 

that new development is designed so fire protection 

can be effectively provided.   

Yes Northern Lakes Fire Protection District was 

given an opportunity to provide comment on 

the proposal and provided response that fire 

protection can be provided. 

II E.-1 Public Safety, Goal 1, Policy F:  Require 

new development to provide sufficient emergency 
Yes The proposed subdivision will be required to 

meet these provisions prior to recordation of 

Exhibit D 



Ex.C&D for Council.docx   9 

 

 

Goal/Policy Consistent Discussion 

vehicular access for emergency equipment and 

adequate water supply and pressure for the 

purposes of fire protection. 

plat or building permitting. 

II E.-2 Sewer and Water 

II E.-2 Water and Sewer, Goal 1, Policy A: Require 

all existing and proposed facilities within the city 

limits be connected to and serviced by, the 

municipal sewer system.   

Yes Connection to the City sewer system is 

required. 

II E.-2 Water and Sewer, Goal 1, Policy B:  

Promote development in areas with municipal sewer 

and water systems in place.   

Yes Municipal sewer and water lines are located 

adjacent to the proposal and can be extended by 

the developer to provide service for the 

proposal. 

II F. Transportation 

II F. Transportation, Goal 1, Policy A:  Promote 

standards that create functional connections to the 

regional highway system and convenient internal 

circulation.  

Yes The proposal includes provision of convenient 

internal circulation and connection to the 

highway system via Meyer Road.  

II F. Transportation, Goal 1, Policy D:  

Incorporate lighting, sidewalks and connections to 

enhance neighborhoods, pedestrian and bike 

pathways, public safety, etc. 

Yes The proposal includes the provision of lighting 

and sidewalks. 

II G. Housing 

II G. Housing, Goal 1:  Apply four primary 

principles, 1) Sense of Community, 2) Variety,                   

3) Affordability and 4) Integration, in the 

enhancement and maintenance of existing 

residential areas and the design of new housing 

developments.  

A) Sense of Community:  Promote a sense of 

community by encouraging walking and cycling, 

good lighting and safe havens for children while 

providing ready access to shared green space and 

parks.  Housing will be connected to commercial 

areas and civic centers by well-organized street 

and pathway systems, potentially including 

public transportation, all making it easy for 

people to meet and interact with each other. 

Neighborhoods should not be completely walled 

off from each other.     

B) Variety:  Provide a broad mix of housing 

choices for a mix of people with differing 

economic means, ages and lifestyles.  Types of 

housing may include, but are not limited to, 

apartments, townhouses, multi-family units, 

Yes The proposal includes lighting and sidewalks to 

encourage walking and cycling and will 

provide increased housing stock which helps 

keep the market affordable. 



Ex.C&D for Council.docx   10 

 

 

Goal/Policy Consistent Discussion 

manufactured homes and small, as well as large, 

lot single family residences.    

C) Affordability:  Ensure affordable housing is 

available for the local household and family, 

encouraging the creation of a wide range of 

housing, including that which is affordable to the 

community’s average and lower income worker 

and family.  

D) Integration:  Provide a mix of appropriate 

housing choices in neighborhoods suitable for 

seniors as well as youth, young families starting 

out, as well as established single-family 

residences. Neighborhoods should be welcoming, 

inviting, safe and available in every sense.  

Seniors should not be segregated from youth. 

Young families starting out should not be 

segregated in apartment complexes from single 

family residential neighborhoods. 

II G. Housing, Goal 2, Policy F:  Protect the 

continuity and inherent character of existing 

neighborhoods in planning and zoning decisions. 

Yes The proposal provides continuity with, and will 

be very similar in character to, the existing 

residential neighborhoods in the immediate 

area. 

II G. Housing, Goal 5: Accommodate the 

enhancement of current housing and the 

development of future housing to ensure housing 

is available in an affordable manner for all 

members of the community. 

Yes Increased housing stock helps keep the market 

affordable. 

II H. School Facilities 

II H. School Facilities, Goal 1:  Consider the 

priorities and concerns of Lakeland School 

District and other schools in future community 

development decisions. 

Yes The Planning and Zoning Commission and 

Council considered impacts to the school 

district during annexation of the property into 

the City. The School District was given an 

opportunity to provide comment on the 

proposal and provided response that they hope 

for a monetary donation to the schools. Such is 

not required by local or state law. 

II H. School Facilities, Goal 2, Policy B:  Improve 

neighborhood access and connection to reduce 

student travel time. 

Yes The proposal includes connection to existing 

residential streets and sidewalks making 

walking to nearby schools possible. 

II K.-1 Small Town Atmosphere 

II K.-1 Community Design, Small Town 

Atmosphere, Goal 1, Policy A: Implement 

community development tools and land use 

regulations to advance the community’s sense of 

Yes The development standards as found within 

Rathdrum City Code, which was developed in 

compliance with the Comprehensive Plan, have 

been utilized in review of the project. 



Ex.C&D for Council.docx   11 

 

 

Goal/Policy Consistent Discussion 

place and small town character. 

II K.-1 Community Design, Small Town 

Atmosphere, Goal 1, Policy C: Consider building 

height and bulk standards for individual districts to 

minimize impacts on views from public spaces  

Yes Building height and bulk standards will be 

applied at the time of lot development in 

conformance with Code. 

 

 









Timber Glade Annexation 2020-01A   1 

 

 

From: Brian Wallace <Brian.Wallace@lakeland272.org>  
Sent: Friday, March 6, 2020 2:18 PM 
To: mike@stegmanns.us 
Cc: becky.meyer@lakeland272.org; Wade Jacklin <wpjacklin@gmail.com>; Ray Kimball 
<rkimball@whipplece.com>; Kristie Williams <krissy.williams@lakeland272.org> 
Subject: Re: Timber Glade 

 Mike, 

Sorry for the delayed reply.  I was in Boise the first part of this week and am behind on my emails.  Thank you for 
your email and the additional details on the Timber Glade project.  Our district is fortunate to be in a growing 
community and we are not anti-growth.  However, managing the impact of growth is a challenge for Idaho 
school districts because we must have local voters approve additional levies or bonds to finance school 
facilities.  Thanks again for reaching out and we would very much like to meet with you to discuss future plans. 

 Sincerely, 

Brian Wallace 
Chief Financial/Operations Officer 
Lakeland School District #272 
  

On Tue, Mar 3, 2020 at 7:31 PM Mike Stegmann US <mike@stegmanns.us> wrote: 

Dear Mr. Wallace, 

 We are in receipt of the School District’s letter regarding the Timber Glade Subdivision and have a deep 
appreciation for the struggles faced by our growing community.  As you can imagine, with only a 20 acre site to 
work with, a 5 to 10 acre donation for a school is both onerous and financially untenable.  It is, however, worth 
noting that current taxable base value of the property is approximately $850K.  After development and home 
construction, that same land will have a taxable base value of approximately $19M.  This increase is not 
unsubstantial and should go a long way towards mitigating the impact the District will see from this subdivision.  

As an infill subdivision within walking distance to Elementary, Jr. High, and High Schools, there will be no impact 
to the district’s bus routes.  The infill will also provide sidewalks that will connect existing neighborhoods, which 
will allow for children to walk to school via neighborhood sidewalks rather than along busy streets like Meyer 
Road.  

That said, although it is not feasible for this project to absorb the cost of such a significant donation, we do have 
a potential to work with the school district on future projects that would be better suited for such a 
donation.  As such, we would prefer to work with the district in the early planning stages rather than as a 
reaction to a request for comment.  That helps us incorporate the District’s needs into our neighborhoods and 
provides a cooperative partnership where both parties meet their goals.   

 Accordingly, we look forward to meeting to discuss further.  We would love to be involved in helping the District 
plan for the future.  

Best Regards, 

Mike Stegmann 
Wild Horse Investments, LLC 

mailto:Brian.Wallace@lakeland272.org
mailto:mike@stegmanns.us
mailto:becky.meyer@lakeland272.org
mailto:wpjacklin@gmail.com
mailto:rkimball@whipplece.com
mailto:krissy.williams@lakeland272.org
mailto:mike@stegmanns.us


c:\users\cary\appdata\local\microsoft\windows\inetcache\content.outlook\050pd108\memo kj-cs - 3.11.2020.docx 

Memo 
To:   Cary Siess (via email) 

From:  Kevin Jump 

CC:   

Date:  March 11, 2020 

Re:  Timber Glade Annexation/Subdivision – Initial Review Comments 

Please find herein our pre-annexation review comments for the proposed 19-acre residential 
subdivision. 

Meyer Road Frontage Improvements: 
The City of Rathdrum recently completed frontage improvements along the west-side of Meyer 
Road, within the limits of the project’s Meyer Road frontage. 
 
Interior Streets:  
There are two public streets which are to be extended into the subject property.  The 
development of the property will require: 

• Northern extension of Sedona Street 

• Southern extension of Liane Lane 
 
All roadways within the proposed development will be owned and maintained by the City of 
Rathdrum; thus, those roadways will be required to be constructed to the City’s Standards. 
 
Sanitary Sewer Collection System Extensions:    
Sanitary sewer is available to the subject property via an existing gravity sewer main within 
existing Sedona Street.  New, public sanitary sewer mains will be constructed, branching off 
the existing main to collect sanitary sewer from the project.  The sanitary sewer will be routed 
to the existing Cooper Valley Lift Station. 

 
Water Infrastructure Extensions: 
Water is available to the subject property via existing water mains within existing Sedona Street 
and existing Liane Lane.  New, public water mains will be extended into the proposed 
development.  The new water mains shall be looped.  The development of the property requires 
connection to both of the referenced existing Sedona Street and Liane Lane water mains. 
 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
8047 W. Main Street 
Rathdrum, ID  83858 

P  208.687.2700 
F  208.687.1377 

5 



Memo KJ-CS - 3.11.2020.docx  ⚫ Page 2 

If the development seeks to have direct access onto Meyer Road, then the City will require that 
the internal water system be connected to the existing 12” diameter water main in Meyer Road. 
 
Stormwater Management:   
Stormwater will be collected and mitigated via grass filtration basins and permanent drywell 
injections per City standards. A stormwater management plan shall be designed to use best 
management practices (BMPs) during and after construction in accordance with accepted 
standard construction practices and City of Rathdrum Standards.  
 
Pedestrian Pathways & Sidewalks:  
In accordance with the City’s Standards for Local Roadways, 5-foot minimum width concrete 
sidewalks shall parallel the new roadways.  Further, where existing roadways are required to 
connect to new roadways, sidewalks are required to be extended to the existing sidewalks on 
the existing roadways. 
 

 













Exhibit G 

Public Comments Received 

IN FAVOR 

Wade Jacklin <wpjacklin@gmail.com> 3764 E Nettleton Gulch Rd, Coeur d'Alene, ID 83815 

Hi Cary,  Please mark me "in favor" of both annexation approval and subdivision approval for 

Timber Glade. 

Thank you, Wade Jacklin 

Brett Nearing <brett@kootenaititle.com> 714 E. Maple Place Hayden, ID 83835.  

I am in favor of Timber Glades  

Thank You 

Debbie Hislop <dhislop@kootenaititle.com> 1450 Northwest Boulevard, Suite 200, Coeur d'Alene, ID 

83814 

Good Afternoon Cary, My name is Deborah A. Hislop, I live in Kootenai County, my cell phone 

number is 208-981-1487. 

I want to let you know that I am in favor of the Timber Glade Annexation / Subdivision, 

Thank you, -Deb Hislop  

Chali Gregory <chali@kootenaititle.com> 7447 N. 16th St. in Dalton Gardens ID 83815 

Hi my name is Chali Gregory and I reside at 7447 N. 16th St. in Dalton Gardens ID 83815 

I am in favor of Timber Glade Subdivision – I vote yes 

Thank you, Chali Gregory  

Kelly Smith <kelly@kootenaititle.com> 2051 N Ridgeview Dr., in Post Falls, ID 

I, Kelly J Smith, am in favor of Timber Glade. 

Thank you and have a nice afternoon. 😊  

J.T. Jacobsen <jt@kootenaititle.com> 765 N. Chisholm CT, Post Falls, Id 83854 

I support and am in favor of the infill annexation and subdivision of Timber Glade.   

Thank you! J.T. Jacobsen 

Emelyn Hopkins <duediligence@kootenaititle.com> 29855 N Good Hope Road, Athol, ID  83801 



Good Afternoon, I would like to let you know I am in favor of Timber Glade.  Thanks,  

Emelyn Hopkins 

Sandy Motz <sandy@kootenaititle.com> 249 S. Eastwood St., Post Falls, Id  83854 

My name is Sandra Motz and I am in favor of this subdivision and personally know the builder 

and the quality of his work and this will be an asset. 

Thank you and take care. 

Sandy Motz, Senior Escrow Officer 

Tami Nearing <tamin@kootenaititle.com> 714 E. Maple Place, Hayden, ID  83835 

Hi ~ I am in favor of the Timber Glade Subdivision. 

Thank you, Tami 

Debbie Matthews <debbiem@kootenaititle.com> 316 S. 12th Street, Coeur d’Alene, ID  83814 

I am in favor of Timber Glade.  

Thank you, Debbie Matthews  

Jan DeFord <jan@kootenaititle.com> 1450 Northwest Blvd, Ste 200, Coeur d' Alene, ID  83814 

In favor of this new subdivision. 

Jan DeFord 

Angela Adams <angela@kootenaititle.com> 2534 West Grange Avenue Post Falls Idaho 83854  

I would like it stated that I am in favor of Timber Glade 

Angela Adams  

Alicia Mills <alicia@kootenaititle.com> 5696 N Parkwood Circle, CDA, ID  83815 

I support this infill annexation and subdivision in Rathdrum 

Have a Fabulous day! Alicia Mills  

Sam Johnson <spudracingcda@gmail.com> 2535 Tiatan St, Post Falls, ID 83854 

Hi Cary,  

I am writing in support of the annexation and subdivision of Timber Glade being heard at 

tonight's meeting. 

Thank you, Sam Johnson 

    



No verbal comments were received during the hearing. 

NEUTRAL 

Deven Smith <smith.deven.01@gmail.com> 7268 E Lund St, Rathdrum ID 

Subdivision – Neutral 

I would like to see more land zoned out for park space (possibly the land in the square created 

by Aldo St, Riss Ave, Pinchot St, and Leopold Ave). I believe a new park with a playground and 

trees would benefit the community with the only other parks across major roads from this area.  

Verbal Comments: 

Theresa Roco – 8050 W 2nd Street, Rathdrum ID 

Questions having a traffic study, number of cars in the new subdivision, traffic impacts especially 

for STEM, possible middle turn lane, will it be an HOA development, will there be green space, 

playground or dog park, what will houses look like she wants them to look like they belong in 

area, what are the home prices, impacts to schools, raise in taxes. 

 

  



OPPOSED 

Sarah Santos <drmartinez@live.com> No Address Provided 

My husband and I are OPPOSED to this annexation and subdivision. We live on Christine St, with 

our home backing up to the property under consideration. We were excited about raising our 

daughter (now 5 months old) in this home. Rathdrum is a wonderful community; however, all of 

that is at risk with the over-building. The city has failed at providing infrastructure to support the 

rapid growth. The streets are becoming more congested. The schools cannot support the 

current student population, let alone those that will already be moving into the approved 

projects. There is a serious lack of businesses (and also no draw for businesses to want to be 

here). Another point is that per kcgov.us, Rathdrum has the highest taxes in all of Kootenai 

County. That seems inappropriate given we have to leave this city for many things, including 

shopping, doctor and hospital visits, government services, etc. We, as the taxpayers, are 

responsible for financing the city council's lack of discretion. Why aren't any of these builders 

being required to contribute to the infrastructure and school buildings necessary for the 

increased population? Why is the council allowing Rathdrum to lose it's small town charm? We 

moved here knowing we would drive into other towns for certain things, and that was fine 

because we wanted the quietness of this area. We don't want this huge influx of people, with 

homes on top of each other (like in other over-populated regions), and we don't want the 

traffic, lack of resources, and lack of educational buildings to become the norm here. We want 

our town to grow, but responsibly. There are already too many housing projects in the works 

that requires updated schooling and infrastructure. The city is already playing catch-up. How big 

of a hole are you willing to go into to take the developer's money? 

When you look at rathdrum.org, the "Welcome to Rathdrum, Idaho" page states the following: 

"Rathdrum, Idaho offers small town living at its best. Located in the Idaho Panhandle, nestled on 

the edge of the Rathdrum Prairie and surrounded by beautiful mountains, Rathdrum has a 

neighborhood atmosphere, yet is only minutes from big city amenities. Rathdrum may just be 

the ideal town you're looking for... here you can experience small town charm and friendliness." 

Rathdrum is quickly losing this. Different council-members were voted in as they promised to 

slow the growth and to move forward responsibly. We are asking you to follow through on 

those promises and to ensure your current residents don't lose what we hold dearest. If this 

project is approved, we will leave the city. It is becoming too much, and we don't want to 

continue to hear more construction for years to come -- especially with an infant at home. 

Please consider the effects of the already approved subdivisions before adding more on and 

expecting taxpayers to foot the bill. We are fed up. 

Thank you, 

Sarah and Gabriel Santos 

 

Daryn Jacobson <darynj68@yahoo.com> 5322 W Anderson Ave. Rathdrum, Id 83858 

Timber Glades Annexation and Subdivision---- OPPOSED 



Jennifer Eastman <jeneastmanrn@gmail.com> 26976 N Michelle Ct, Athol 

Please don’t turn rose park into more houses. Please. Our town has gotten big enough. Cda is 
ruined. Let’s please not do that. 

My parents are at 8252 W Nevada. My son attends the STEM school. I grew up in Rathdrum. I do 
NOT want to see another subdivision. Please. We have enough. We are losing our small town 
feel. Remember when CDA felt smallish. Now it's destroyed. Let's not do that. Please, please, 
please. I had to move to Athol to go back to small. 

The traffic there is already bad, I can’t imagine another subdivision right there. 

Jennifer Brown <brown_jennifer45@yahoo.com> 6702 west christine street, Rathdrum ID 

We live at 6702 west christine street.. and our household is against the proposal of 57 homes 

being built in the parkrose estate.. a huge reason is our roads and streets and flow of traffic is 

crazy as it is.. especially when schools are in session.. trying to get out off of any road is alot of 

time consuming.. people are not respectful of this and use the newly built christine street as a 

freeway and short cut.. and also before we start over population our town of rathdrum .. we 

need to think about the school.. where are all these people going to go to school? The builders 

and contractors need to pay for all that jive... if they consider moving forward..  we have a 

beautiful neighborhood.. and I've seen an increase of people stealing from homes.. and it seems 

like we as a small town community are just going to open our arms and allowing this type of 

behavior in our communities and we need to not pursue all these homes being built.. we are 

against it.. thank you 

I also will add the excess cars and campers that are always parked on the streets in the newly 

neighbouring of the development on christine... who is monitoring all these single home 

establishments .. seems like there are more then a single family living in these homes.. I thought 

we had to park in our driveways .. and not make traveling down a road having to go around all 

the items being parked in the streets.. especially during winter months with plow trucks and 

snow removal.. let's not over populate a great city..  

Gabrielle Durbin <piwig64@gmail.com> 7164 diagonal rd rathdrum id 

This is a email concern the subdivision the meeting is about. Rathdrum can barely deal with 

what we already have the schools are full and this town was not made for all this building. Thank 

you for your time gabrielle durbin 

Dale Zirbel <rockymountaincarpentry@gmail.com> 6608 W Christine st Rathdrum, ID 83858 

Hello,  

I wanted to write in about the proposed Timber Glade subdivision. I have lived in the area since 

2000, and I moved my family to Rathdrum in 2014 because CDA and Hayden were just growing 

to fast. We wanted more of the small town feeling. Now there are housing developments 

popping up all over here in Rathdrum too. I just heard about another new one north of hwy 53 

on Meyer that is another 100+ houses. How can these all keep getting approved??? We have 1 

grocery store (Buymart is not really a grocery store) and our schools do not have enough room 

mailto:rockymountaincarpentry@gmail.com


for more kids either. The roads are crazy when school begins and ends also. We can't barely get 

out of our driveway around those times. Plus the high schoolers drive way too fast down the 

streets at those times. I have had kids flying by my house 50+ mph passing each other. I have 

contacted the police multiple times and I have seen 1 person pulled over on my street in 6 years. 

I live on the older section of Christine st and it was great until the road got pushed though and 

the new development was built. We replaced a couple city council members last November at 

the ballot because of their views on the growth of our town. I also would like to say, I knew the 

previous owner of the Park Rose Ranch property where this Timber Glades subdivision is 

proposed. This fall when he got an offer on the property he called me and was so excited 

because he said that finally he received an offer from someone who does not want to develop it. 

He said that quite a few developers tried to buy it from him and he didn't want to see the 

property destroyed. He stated that this buyer told him that the house reminded him of the 

house that he grew up in, in St Louis. And that he was going to keep the property as is and live 

there. It looks like all of that was a complete lie. Is that the kind of people that we want making 

money off of our town? I purchased a commercial lot this last year to move my business from 

Hayden to Rathdrum, but if all of these developments just keep getting approved with no care 

to the community we will probably be selling our house and commercial land. Please stop just 

approving every new development that comes across your desks. Our streets and town cannot 

handle all of this growth so fast. 

Thank you for your time,  Dale Zirbel  

Verbal Comments: 

Kathleen Robson – 15387 Lianne Ln, Rathdrum ID 

Previous owner told them the property wouldn’t be developed. Concerned developer is using 

2010 census information to determine number of students which the development would 

house. Concerned for schools and that taxes on developed property will not cover school needs. 

Council and Commission needs to look at this issue. Concerned about trees – Timber Landings 

removed 95% of their trees – wants number of tree requirements in yards and buffer. 

Concerned of cumulative impacts of all the proposals coming before Commission and Council 

and would like to see a moratorium so there is time to research problems with traffic, schools, 

etc. 

Donald Robson – 15387 Lianne Ln, Rathdrum ID 

Lots on Christine St and Lianne are ¼ acre even though zoned R-2. Doesn’t want to see R-2 

zoning in development. The lot average size provided is not a good representation of the 

development due to the large lot where the mansion is. Wants R-1 zoning and new 

development to slow down. Wants to know if aquifer has been considered. 

Dale Zirbel –  

There are no parking signs on Christine so the STEM school can’t park there. The average lot size 

provided in misrepresented due to one large lot. Our grocery stores and streets cannot handle 

more people.  



Bill Baragona – Lianne Ln, Rathdrum ID 

Agrees lot average is not representative. Traffic impacts is concern. Concerned about trees 

being cut down and was told the property wouldn’t be sold to a developer. Taxes keep going up 

because of development. 

 

 



 

 





















Page 1 

Memo 
To:   Rathdrum City Council 

From:  Cary Siess, Planning and Zoning Administrator 

Date:  September 11, 2019 

Re:  14362 Honu Court 

The property at 14362 Honu Court, Parcels R-000-001-3220 and R-7600-00H-999-D, is subject to the Annexation 
Agreement between the City of Rathdrum and John D. and Tanya Kirsch, Charles and Tamara Cramer and Herb and 
Sandra Nagel dated February 23, 2004, recorded under Kootenai County Assessor’s Records as #1859636. The 
purpose of this Memo is to clarify and memorialize the allowed “grandfathered” non-conforming use of the property as 
a single family residence with outbuildings.  

As stated in §6 of the Annexation Agreement, “The property will be recognized as a pre-exiting non-conforming use 
and or referred to as “grandfathered in.” Those uses will be recognized as of the date of this signed agreement 
[2/16/2004]. All parties realize that there are presently existing residences on these parcels and that any new buildings 
or structures will be subject to the City of Rathdrum’s zoning and building code standards. The land owners of this 
property may live in their residences and or rent out their residences to tenants, until their property is developed. The 
exiting landowners will not have to hook up to any Rathdrum City utilities, until a land sale or development of property 
occurs. To further state the continuance of these non-conforming uses, it is understood and acknowledged that there 
presently exists two residences and outbuildings being occupied as residences and related outbuildings upon the 
annexed property. The present uses may be continued and shall be treated as non-conforming uses as defined in 
Chapter 7 of the Rathdrum Municipal [City] Code entitled “Zoning” and designated as Title 11, Chapter 7. This land 
and improvements and said existing uses shall be entitled to the benefits and privileges of and be subject to the terms, 
conditions of the GENERAL PROVISIONS, and SCHEDULE OF CONTINUANCES, NON CONFORMING “OPEN” 
LAND USES: All set forth in said Title 11, Chapter 7, and may be continued as therein provided.” 

The subject property is subject to, and may take advantage of, any provisions, restrictions or benefits as follows: 

RCC 11-7-3: GENERAL PROVISIONS: 
 
A. The lawful use of land or structures existing on the effective date hereof may be continued. With approval of 
the Council, nonconforming uses or structures may be altered or expanded. The extension of a nonconforming 
use to a portion of a structure which was arranged or designed for the nonconforming use at the time this 
Ordinance becomes effective is not an expansion of a nonconforming use. A nonconforming structure which 
conforms with respect to use may be altered or expanded if the alteration or expansion does not cause the 
structure to deviate further from the standards of this Title. 
 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
Planning and Zoning Division 

8047 W. Main Street 
Rathdrum, ID  83858 

P  208.687.2700 
F  208.687.1377 

 



Page 2 

 

B. If a nonconforming use is discontinued for a period of six (6) consecutive months, further use of the property 
shall conform to this Title. 

C. A nonconforming use, if changed to a conforming use, may not be changed back to a nonconforming use. 

D. A nonconforming use may be changed with approval of the Council to another nonconforming use of the 
same or of a more restricted nature. 

E. Nothing contained in this regulation shall require any change in the plans, construction, alteration or 
designated use of a structure upon which construction has commenced prior to the effective date hereof. If 
the designated use will be nonconforming, it must be in operation within two (2) years from the effective 
date hereof; otherwise, future use of the property shall be in conformance with the zoning district in which 
the property is located. 

F. Normal repairs and alterations may be made to a lawful nonconforming structure provided no structural 
alterations be made except those required by law. Existing nonconforming structures designed, arranged, 
intended for, or devoted to a use not permitted under this Title shall not be enlarged, extended, 
reconstructed, structurally altered, or moved unless such use is changed to a use permitted under the 
regulations specified by this Title for the district in which said building is located. Nothing in this Title shall 
be deemed to prevent the restoring to a safe condition any building or part thereof declared to be unsafe 
and ordered to be restored to a safe condition, unless such building has been destroyed by an extent 
exceeding seventy five percent (75%) of full value, as determined by consideration of the assessed value. 

G. When a structure containing a nonconforming use is damaged by fire or by any other cause so that the cost 
of renewal of the damaged parts exceeds seventy five percent (75%) of the cost of the replacement of the 
entire structure (exclusive of the foundations) using new materials, then such structure shall not be rebuilt 
unless the structure and its construction and uses conform fully to this Title and other codes of the City as 
applied to new structures and to uses for the district in which it is located. The determination of whether a 
structure is destroyed to the extent described above shall rest with the City Council. (Ord. 390, 5-13-1997) 

RCC 11-7-4: SCHEDULE OF CONTINUANCE; NONCONFORMING "OPEN" LAND USES:  
The two (2) alternatives provided to meet compliance with nonconforming open land uses are: 
 
A. A use of land (not having buildings thereon) which does not conform to the use provisions of this Title, or 

becomes nonconforming by reason of subsequent amendments shall be discontinued within five (5) years 
from the effective date hereof or amendments thereto. 

B. All uses of land for outdoor work or storage purposes, which, after the adoption of this Title or amendments 
thereto, exist as nonconforming uses, shall be completely enclosed with a view-obscuring fence within two 
(2) years. Such fence and supplemental landscaping will during all seasons of the year completely screen 
all operations of such establishments from view from adjacent land and buildings. (Ord. 390, 5-13-1997) 

 




	01a Council Agenda 06-10-20
	01b June Calendar
	05a Council Minutes 05-27-20
	05b Special Meeting Minutes 06-04-20
	05c June Bills
	05d Surplus Memo - 05-10-2020
	08a 2020.05.27 Mailbox replacement policy
	10a Staff Report for Timber Glade Subdivision
	TG 1 - Timber Glade Prelim Plat 2020-02 Staff_CC
	TG 2 - Ex.A--TG Narrative
	TG 3 - Ex.B Updated--TG Preliminary Plat with R-1
	TG 4 - Ex.C&D for Council--TG Prelim Plat
	TG 5 - Ex.E1--Northern Lakes Fire
	TG 6 - Ex.E2--Bonneville Power
	TG 7 - Ex.E3--Lakeland School Dist
	TG 8 - Ex.E4--Lakeland Email
	TG 9 - Ex.E5--City PW.Engineer Memo KJ-CS - 3.11.2020
	TG 10 - Ex.F--Annex Agr_Filed
	TG 11 - Ex.G--TG Public Comments. ALL

	10b Honu Court
	10b Honu Court 1 - Aerial and Zoning
	10ba Honu Court 2 - Nagel-Kirsch-Cramer Annexation Agreement
	10bc Honu Court 3 - Memo Non-Conforming Use 19

	12a Graduation Proclamation

